
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY -SIXTH SESSION 
Official Records • 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 67th MEETING 

Chairman: Mr. CALLE Y CALLE (Peru) 

CONTENTS 

SIXTH COMMITTEE 
67th meeting 

held on 
Thursday, 3 December 1981 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

AGENDA ITEM 113: UNITED NATIONS PROGRAMME OF ASSISTANCE IN THE TEACHING, STUDY, 
DISSEMINATION AND WIDER APPRECIATION OF INTERNATIONAL LAW: REPORT OF THE 
SECRETARY -GENERAL (continued} 

AGENDA ITEM 114: MEASURES TO PREVENT INTERNATIONAL TERRORISM WHICH ENDANGERS OR 
TAKES INNOCENT HUMAN LIVES OR JEOPARDIZES FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS, AND STUDY OF THE 
UNDERLYING CAUSES OF THOSE FORMS OF TERRORISM AND ACTS OF VIOLENCE WHICH LIE IN 
MISERY, FRUSTRATION, GRIEVANCE AND DESPAIR AND WHICH CAUSE SOME PEOPLE TO 
SACRIFICE HUMAN LIVES, INCLUDING THEIR OWN, IN AN ATTEMPT TO EFFECT RADICAL 
CHANGES: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY -GENERAL (continued} 

Of..C 1 6 '1981 

• This record is subject to ·correction. Correctlona lhould be sent under the 
signature of a member of the delegation concerned within one week of the dllte of 
publication to the Chief of the Official Records Edltin1 Section. room A·3550, 
866 United Nations Plaza (Aicoa Bulldlnr), and Incorporated in a copy ol tbo 
record. 

Dlstr. GENERAL 
A/C.6/36/SR.67 
11 December 1981 
ENGLISH 

Corrections will be issued after the end of the aesslon, In a aepar1te fuc:lcle for 
each Committee. 

81-58491 

ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

/ ... 



A/C.6/36/SR.67 
English 
Page 2 

AGENDA ITEH 113: UNITED NATIONS PROGRAW1E OF ASSISTANCE IJIT THE TEACHING, STUDY, 
DISSEHINATION AND HIDER APPRECIATION OF INTERNATIONAL LAH: REPORT OF THE SECRETARY­
GENERAL (continued) {A/36/633; A/C.6/36/L.25) 

1. Hr. Suk Heun YUN (Observer for the Republic of Korea) said that his country 
attached great importance to the Proc;raJJ1me under consideration, w·hich was 
instrumental in the progressive development of international law and its 
codification and in the realization of 1-rorld peace through law. 

2. He v,relcomed the considerable achievements of the United Nations, UNITAR, 
UHESCO, the Hague Academy of International Law and other public and private 
institutions in that field. 

3. As its economy grew and exchanges -vrith other countries in various fields 
expanded, the Republic of Korea had a grouing need for experts and scholars -vrho 
vrere vrell acquainted ui th the major legal systems in the world. 

4. He hoped that the developing countries uould be offered greater opportunities 
for participation in the United nations Programme. In that connexion, he expressed 
his gratitude to the United Nations and to UNITAR for accepting a trainee from 
the Republic of Korea under the United Nations-UNITAR Fellovship Programme in 
International Lavr for 1981. 

5. He stressed that, under his country's Constitution, the generally recognized 
rules of international lau -vrere part of the la-vr of the land: those rules, together 
-vri th treaties, uere respected on an equal foot in': vri th domestic lavr. The rule of 
lau vras considered to be a cardinal principle of democracy, and each year the 
Republic of Korea observed a national day to emphasize the importance of that 
principle. 

6. In the Republic of Korea, international la.-vr Has taught and research in that 
field vas conducted at universities and other institutions of higher learning. 
International lavr 1-ras a mandatory subject in faculties of la1.r and political 
science. In examinations for the recruitment of government officials, that 
subject was also mandatory for diplomatic service candidates, -vrhile it was 
optional for others. The ICorean Association of International Lavr, which had been 
established in 1953 and 1-ras composed of approximately 200 scholars and experts 
in international law, held monthly symposiums on topics related to international 
lau and semi-annually published The Korean Journal of International Lavr. 

1. Under his Government's auspices, various international conventions, meetings 
and lectures had been held at Seoul, for example the twentieth annual session of 
the Asian--African Ler-;al Consultative Committee in 1979 and, early in 1981, a 
110rkshop on the la-vr of the sea, in uhich prominent scholars and experts from 
various parts of the world had participated. 

I . .. 



A/C.6/36/SR.67 
En:-;lish 
Page 3 

(Mr. Suk Heun Yun) 

8. He had carefully studied the report of the Secretary-General (A/36/633) 
and fully supported chapter III of the report (Recowmendations of the Secretary­
General regardinE, execution of the Programme in 1982-1983). 

9. His Government would make the necessary arrangements to ensure that qualified 
experts from the Republic of Korea 1·rere included in the register of experts and 
scholars in international lm·T so that they could have r;reater opportunities to 
make their contribution in that field. 

10. Referring to the United Nations~~TITAR regional training and refresher 
courses in international law for the Asian and Pacific region, which l·rere 
scheduled to take place during 1982, he informed the Cowmittee that his Government 
was prepared to host the courses, if the United Nations and UNITAR so desired. He 
assured the Committee that his country would do its best to guarantee the success 
of that undertakine;. 

11. ~1r. ROSEl'i!:.J:C (Israel) said that his deleGation had carefully studied the report 
of the Secretary--General (A/36/633), but regretted the fact that, because of its 
belated distribution, other delegations had not had sufficient time to do so. 
Therefore, he merely wished to comment on vrhat had been omitted from the report. 
As the title of ae;enda item 113 indicated, four separate subjects 'l·rere to be 
dealt with, namely, the teaching, study, dissemination and wider appreciation 
of international lau, which were directed tmrards four different categories 
of recipients. Hmvever, the report did not seem to have included all those 
questions. It also failed to give a complete picture even of the legal activities 
carried out within the frameuork of the United Nations itself, since it did 
not mention, for example, either the legal aspects of the new· international 
economic order, uhich was being dealt uith by many United nations organs, or the 
extremely important vror1{ currently being conducted by UITF.P in connexion 1-rith the 
lau of the environment. In addition, the massive documentation submitted to the 
General Assembly alone, for example the report of UHITAR and of the United Nations 
University, revealed large areas of activity vrhich ivere not vrell-lmown and vrhich, 
according to the report, were not covered by the Programme. 

12. His delegation therefore vrished to return to a suggestion made previously, 
namely, that it was nm-r essential for the Secretariat to organize the systematic 
dissemination of general information on the large number of legal activities 
being conducted by the United nations and its specialized agencies. As a minimum, 
one might envisage the publication of an information bulletin on legal activities, 
similar to that issued periodically by the Council of Europe. The latter bulletin 
could serve as a model for the proposed information bulletin, vrhich 1vould 
circulate information on all the legal activities conducted by the United Nations 
system, vi thout going into details, and uhich vrould appear twice each year. 

13. Parac;raph 1 of the report gave the iMpression that the lJH Monthly Chronicle: 
fulfilled that need. Houever, his delegation did not ae;ree, and it therefore 
asked the Secretariat to consider more closely the whole problem of the 
dissemination of up-to-date information on all the legal activities conducted 
vTi thin the framework of the United Nations and the S:tJecialized agenc1es. The 

I . .. 



A/C.6/36/SR.67 
English 
Pa{.Se 4 
(Nr. Rosenne, Israel) 

Office of Legal Affairs vvas especially vrell-placed to receive and disseminate 
such information, and his dele{.Sation hoped that a full report on that matter 1rould 
be submitted to the thirty--seventh session of the General Assembly. 

14. Draft resolution A/C.6/36/L.25 did not create any difficulties for his 
delegation, although it could be further improved. In addition, he supported the 
proposal for the celebration of a United Nations Day for International Law, 
vrhich could receive unanimous support. His delegation also vrelcomed the fact 
that draft resolution A/C.6/36/L.27 had been withdravm. 

15. Hr. HII0:TIH (Zaire) emphasized that it vras absolutely essential to disseminate 
and teach international lmr at all levels, because the international community 
v.ras keenly interested in the progressive development of international law, vrhich 
vras primarily the concern of the International Lmr ComT!lission. The Hague Academy 
of International Lau and UNITAR, in v,rhose activities he had been personally 
involved, also played an important part in that connexion. His delegation 
therefore believed it was proper to encourage all efforts to promote the teaching, 
study, dissemination and 1rider appreciation of international la•r. 

16. The CHAIRJ'1AN announced that Hadagascar had become a sponsor of draft 
resolution A/C.6/36/L.25. 

AGEHDA ITEN 114: H:CASURES TO PREVE1'1T INTERNATIONAL TERRORISH UHICH ENDA.l'JGERS OR 
T.AJ'ES IHFOCENT HU!'TATT LIVES OR JEOPARDIZES FU11DAMENTP..L FHCEDm'IS, AND STUDY OF THE 
u;:mERLYIHG CAUSES OF THOSE FORHS OF TERRORISM AND ACTS OF VIOL~NCE ~THICH LIE 
IIT HISERY, FRUSTRATIOn, GRI~VAHCE AND DESPAIR J\ND HFICH CAUSE SOHE PEOPLE TO 
SACRIFICE ITUrtl\!1 LIVES, INCLUDING THEIR OUN, IIT .AN ATTEr'lPT TO EFFECT RADICAL 
CHMTGES: RT;POR.T OF THE SECTIETARY-GEEERAL (continued) (A/36/425; A/C.6/36/L.28) 

17. l!r. IC!mR.AD (1\.fghanistan) observed that acts of international terrorism 
imperilled not only the lives and security of innocent individuals, but also 
international co--operation amonc: States. His delegation vms therefore opposed 
to the odious JJractice of terrorism, includinc: the taldng of hostages, vrhich 
disrupted the diplomatic activity of States and their representatives. It 
believed that the international community should promptly take ener13etic and 
effective steps to put an end to such practices. 

15. Defininc; terrorism 1ras a problem because soBe parties sought to assimilate 
lcc;itimate acts occurring in the course of national liberation strur,r,les aGainst 
coloni<Jl, nee-colonial and racist oppression >·rith acts of terrorism. Others 
tried to dravr a more subtle distinction, condemninc: Sl)ecific catec:ories of 
terrorism as defined by analysinr; the basic causes of international terrorism. 
The United Fations Charter itself recognized the le~itimacy of the strucgle of 
neonles arainst rrll forms of colonial or racist domination and apartheid. The 
definition of terrorism should encomnass serious international offences-~ 
includinc; acts of violence against diplomats and foreic;ncrs on account of their 
nationality) as l·rell as cri:r1cs committed for motives fallinr, 1·rithin the ambit of 
on1in-:Hy lm·r. 

/ ... 



A/C.6/36/SR.67 
English 
Page 5 

(Hr. Kherad, AfRhanistan) 

19. A number of international legal instruments such as the Geneva Convention 
relative to the Protection of Civilian Persons in Time of !Jar (1949), the Hague 
Convention for the Suppression of Unlaw·ful Seizure of Aircraft ( 1970) , the 
Convention for the Suppression of Unlawful Acts against the Safety of Civil 
Aviation (1971) and the Convention on the Prevention and Punishment of Crimes 
against Internationally Protected Persons, including Diplomatic Agents (1973) 
established the principles that should be applied in combating such acts of 
violence. It was important, therefore, that they should be acceded to by the 
greatest possible number of States and strictly observed. His delegation felt that 
the effectiveness of international co-operation in the campaign against acts of 
international terrorism depended largely on the efficacy of the steps taken by 
States at the national level. It -vras primarily for States, as members of the 
international community, to eradicate the circumstances and causes underlying 
international terrorism and to adopt the measures necessary to combat terrorism 
effectively; it would then be possible to close certain legal loop-holes and create 
conditions conducive to the enforcement of international instruments. Tio 
international agreement or resolution could be effective unless all States took 
firm steps. 

20. His delegation 1-1as prepared to co-operate with others in the continuing 
search for appropriate solutions and methods with a view to preventing and 
combating international terrorism. 

21. ~1r. MAlCAREVICH (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that since the 
latter part of the 1970s one serious problem in the forefront of world political 
life - political extremism accompanied by the gravest forms of terrorism - had 
become so i·ridespread that it had assumed the proportions of a social phenomenon. 
An investigation of international terrorism and means of combating the scourge, 
Hhich disrupted the internal life of States and seriously affected the 
international order, 1-ras thus of special importance at the current juncture. 

22. There were those who, pretending not to understand the true nature of 
terrorism, took advantage of the situation to try and discredit l>Tarxist-Leninist 
theory and national liberation struggles against Fascist and dictatorial regimes~ 
colonialism and nee-colonialism. In the report of the twenty-sixth Congress of 
the Communist Party of the Soviet Union, the General Secretary of the Party had 
emphasized that reactionary and imperialist circles were trying to pass off mass 
liberation movements as manifestations of terrorism. 

23. In view of the fact that over tw·o billion people had throvm off the colonial 
yoke since the Second Uorld ~Tar, it uas obvious that anyone vrho now sought to 
equate national liberation movements with international terrorism either had not 
u~derstood the first thing about the historical development of the international 
community or had unavovrable intentions. Accordinc; to such reasoning, the emergence 
on the political map of a large number of independent States must be the outcome 
of international terrorism. Efforts were being made to force world public opinion 
to accept s11ch ideas, which made a mockery of the aspirations of millions of men 
and 1mmen in Africa, Asia and Latin America -vrho -vrere still fie;htine; against the 

I ... 



A/C. 6/36/SR.67 
English 
Page 6 

(Mr. Nakarevich, Ukrainian SSR) ' 
remains of colonialism, foreign interference and assaults on their human dignity. 
According to all appearances, those conducting the campaign of misinformation 
were trying to conceal their responsibility for the deterioration of the 
international situation and to retain a free hand for meddling directly in the 
domestic affairs of other peoples. 

24. The Ukrainian Government, vrhose position on the ae;enda item under 
consideration vms set forth in document A/36/425, strongly condemned terrorism, 
vThich was absolutely incompatible l·rith the socialist ideal and contrary to the 
peaceful spirit of the Soviet peoples. The Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic 
was a signatory to a number of conventions concernin~ different aspects of 
international terrorism. 

25. His delegation 1vas a11are that international terrorism ·t-ras aimed at breaking 
the democratic forces 1 front, creating tensions betvreen States, undermining 
normal international relations and enabling the capitalist monopolies to 
maintain their domination; it urged the United Nations not to cease combating 
the scourge of international terrorism, and to promote international co~operation 
vTith a vieu to the speedy adoption of effective measures to prevent and curb all 
manifestations of international terrorism, which was so dan~erous for the 
international community. 

26. Hr. ROSEUNE (Israel), speaking in exercise of the right of reply, which he 
had agreed to do before the end of the debate on a~enda item 114, said that he 
reserved the right to speak again in exercise of the right of reply if necessary. 

27. Apart from some serious statements, the debate on item 114 had been largely a 
series of diatribes repeatin~ vrell-kn01m positions already reflected in 
resolution 34/145, on uhich his delegation had abstained. Those monologues had 
contained all the cliches about Israel and the Jewish national liberation 
movement, zionism, 11hich he had the honour to represent. All sorts of far-fetched 
accusations had been repeated ad nauseam, Goebbels style, without a shred of 
proof or attempt at proof, by the selfsame voices 1-rhich claimed that national 
liberation movements uere exempt from all the rules of normal civilized conduct 
and that the acts of terrorism committed by them or in their name l·rere leeitimate 
acts of self-defence. 

28. Regarding one of those scurrilous attacks in paTticular, he would say that 
ivhat vras sauce for the eoose 1-ras sauce for the gander and that Israel could not 
accept that conventions and protocols i·Thich l·rere not in force or binding on a 
State could impose any obligations on that State, especially vrhen such a doctrine 
1-laS propounded in such lurid terms by representatives of a Government whose greed 
for pouer 11as unbounded and 11hich shrank from no form of terrorism, including 
3tate terrorism, to attain its aims. 

29. Hhat had surprised and pained him in the debate uas that no attention had 
been paid to ne\-T forms of indiscriminate terrorism vrhich the regime in question 

I ... 



A/C.6/36/SR.67 
En~lish 

Page 7 
(Mr. Rosenne, Israel) 

and others of the same brand had invented in the past fe-vr years, not-vrithstancling 
their support for resolution 34/145. He -vras referring to an ugly form of mass 
terrorism - a form of duress on other Governments - -vrhich had made its 
appearance on several continents and -vrhich consisted in bomb attacks on places 
of worship, especially synagogues. In the past tvro -years alone, nine such 
attacks on synagogues had been recorded in cities as far a~art as Antwerp, 
Buenos Aires, Cairo , Hontevideo, Paris and Vienna, which showed hm·r 1ridespread 
the plague had become and vrhat dangers it presaged for innocent bystanders the 
world over and for unsuspecting Governments. Sometimes those attacks uere waged 
at night, through booby-trapped cars parked near synagogues; others took place 
during the hours of w·orship, especially on religious holidays. Although there 
had fortunately been few deaths, many people had been wounded and a large 
number of the casualties had been simple passers-by, not even Jei·TS, having no 
connexion with the synagogues. That type of "hit--squad" attack on public places, 
especially places of -vrorship of any denomination, warranted the strongest form 
of international condemnation. 

30. Hitherto, synagogues had been the main objects of that kind of attack, but 
tomorrm.; it might be churches, mosques, mesjids or temples. His delegation hoped 
that the United Nations, which had just adopted a declaration on the elimination 
of religious intolerance, would use all its influence to bring about a universal 
condemnation of that new form of terrorism, which ivas well knmm to some 
representatives or their Governments, and if necessary take concrete steps to 
stamp out the scourge. He called upon all Governments and all competent 
international organizations and agencies, including INTERPOL, to co-operate in 
preventing the recurrence of such attacks and in apprehending and punishing 
their perpetrators. 

31. VThen Israel had been admitted to the United Nations as a Jewish State in 
1949, its representative had expressed his country's fervent 1-rishes for the 
security, dignified existence and equality of rights of Jews everYI·There. Israel 
still maintained that position. 

32. The scurrilous attacks to which Israel had been subjected in the present 
debate vrere an example of the diplomacy of confrontation 1·rhich -vras proving such an 
obstacle to the strengthening of the role of the Organization in the conduct of 
international affairs. They lvere an unabashed violation of the principle 
enshrined in the Charter that the United Nations should be a centre for harmonizing 
the actions of nations. If he had refrained from taking part in the general debate 
on item 114 and presenting the Committee with the full bill of indictment 1rhich he 
could draw up against many of those who had persisted in denigrating his country 
at the past fev meetings, it ~Vas because he had not uished to disturb the serenity 
which generally characterized the debates of the Sixth Committee. He regretted 
that those scurrilous attacks on his country had compelled him to make the present 
reply. 

The meetinr, rose at ll. 50 a.m. 




